
High Peak Borough Council

CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP (HPBC) AGENDA

Date: Thursday, 22 April 2021

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. ‘Other’ Interests

3. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 50)

4. Theme - Agriculture and Land Use (Pages 51 - 72)
(a) Woodland Trust – John Tucker

(b) Achieving Net Zero – Farming’s 2040 Goal – Andrew Critchlow (NFU) and 
Chloe Palmer (Farm Environment) (documents attached)

(c) Discussion and suggested actions from presentations

5. Date of next meeting - 20 May 2021 

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

Membership of Climate Change Working Group (HPBC)
Councillor T Ashton Councillor A Barrow
Councillor J Collins Councillor C Farrell
Councillor L Grooby Councillor M Hall
Councillor I Huddlestone Councillor T Kemp
Councillor D Lomax Councillor A McKeown
Councillor G Oakley Councillor K Thomson
Councillor S Thomson Councillor E Thrane
Councillor J Todd


Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

High Peak Borough Council

CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP (HPBC)

Meeting: Wednesday, 24 March 2021 at 6.30 pm in Virtual

Present: Councillor A McKeown (Chair)

Councillors T Ashton, A Barrow, J Collins, C Farrell, L Grooby, M Hall, 
I Huddlestone, T Kemp, K Thomson, S Thomson and J Todd

Councillors Abbott and Young were also in attendance

An apology for absence was received from Councillor E Thrane

36 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENT

The Chair confirmed that the meeting was being broadcast live to the 
internet via the Council’s website and was capable of repeated viewing. The 
images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the 
Council. All were asked to keep to the speaking guidelines which were 
outlined.  Any views expressed by any speaker in the meeting are the 
speaker’s own and do not necessarily reflect the views of High Peak 
Borough Council.

37 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)

The presentation from the Head of Development Services at the last 
meeting would be circulated.

It was requested that an item around the general principles around a low 
carbon advertising policy be added to the agenda for the next meeting.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2021 be approved as a 
correct record.

38 ACTIONS SINCE THE LAST MEETING - VERBAL UPDATE
(Agenda Item 4)

Actions since the last meeting included:
 the wording for the article on the website was awaiting approval 
 various training events had been attended by members and officers 

including the APSE Energy Summit and an event around Rising to 
the Challenge of Climate Emergency.

 The Biodiversity Group had met once
 A meeting had been held with other authorities in the Local Energy 

Partnership around the local authority delivery of phase 2 of the 
Green Homes Grant

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Climate Change Working Group (HPBC)
Wednesday, 24 March 2021

2

39 UPDATE ON DRAFT ACTION PLAN - VERBAL UPDATE
(Agenda Item 5)

The following updates on the action plan were made:
 The divestment motion had been considered by the Performance 

Framework Working Group who agreed that it was appropriate for 
this to be included as part of the Treasury Management report to 
Audit & Regulatory Committee

 A meeting had been convened with High Peak Green Network to 
follow up the input they have made to the action plan.  There were 
opportunities to look at the SMDC version as well.

 Anthesis who had produced the Scatter tool had been engaged to do 
an analysis of the borough level of carbon emissions and trajectories

 an analysis of energy use within our buildings would also be 
undertaken via the Scatter tool

It was requested that in future, the action plan be updated and circulated in 
advance of each meeting.

It was reported that AES had reduced their carbon output by 88 metric 
tonnes as a result of investing in new vehicles.

RESOVED:

That the updates be noted.

40 THEME - COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS AND INDUSTRY
(Agenda Item 6)

De-Carbonise Scheme

Liz Pasteur from Derbyshire County Council made a presentation to the 
Working Group around the De-Carbonise scheme which was a collaboration 
between Derby City Council, DCC and the University of Derby which aimed 
to reduce carbon emissions for businesses.  A copy of the presentation is 
attached.  Grant funding was available until October 2022 to support carbon 
reduction, although it was noted that funding had run out for Derbyshire at 
the moment but other grants and support were available. Ways in which 
businesses could be helped were set out and included lighting, heating and 
insulation, compressed air and heat recovery, resource efficiency and 
renewable energy.  

In response to a query, members were advised that the project started in 
November 2019 and followed on from the D2 energy efficiency scheme.  
The scheme was funded jointly by the councils and the ERDF.  Regarding 
grants for heating, grants had been provided for gas heating where carbon 
savings would be made due to a lack of alternative options.

Sustainable East Midlands

Ian Bates from East Midlands Chamber made a presentation around the 
Sustainable East Midlands Project which aims to increase awareness and 
engagement among businesses with the sustainability agenda, while Page 4



Climate Change Working Group (HPBC)
Wednesday, 24 March 2021

3

pushing the region to the forefront of the UKs ‘Build Back Greener’ vision for 
the post-Covid economy. A copy of the presentation is attached.  A number 
of goals were set out which were being delivered via a suite of forums / 
conferences and summits.  A business network magazine was produced, 
together with online resources and signposting to funded support.  An 
Environmental Impact Award would also be made.

Regarding educating the public sector, it was reported that DCC were 
changing their procurement process and discussions were taking place with 
local authorities around embedded carbon or indirect carbon footprints.  
Reference was made to businesses being more amenable to reducing office 
space to enable staff to work at home or within hubs.

Beyond Net Zero 2050 roadmap – Breedon

Spencer Green from the Breedon Group made a presentation around the 
OK Concrete and Cement Industry Roadmap to Beyond Net Zero.  A copy 
of the presentation is attached.  Generally, carbon production had been 
reduced by over 50% due to efficiencies, improvements and plant 
rationalisation.  The use of low carbon cements and concrete carbon 
capture were essential for the sector and this was being achieved by 
resource efficiencies including technological changes to the product and 
additive manufacturing.   It was noted that through carbonation and thermal 
mass, when concrete is in the in-built environment it draws carbon back into 
it and can absorb about 20% of its process emissions and this continues 
once concrete is demolished.  The Government’s goal by 2032 was 
discussed and recommendations around how the public sector could 
achieve this target were set out.

With reference to carbon capture, members were advised that research was 
on-going at the moment with a pilot project starting in Norway.  Technology 
more suitable to the cement industry was in early development.  Regarding 
the drop in emissions from the cement industry, members advised that this 
was due to plant rationalisation and an increase in imports.  Demand was 
fairly flat and talks were on-going between government and the largest 
users of cement around infrastructure delivery.

All the presenters were thanked for their presentations and attendance.

41 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
(Agenda Item 7)

Dates of future meetings are:

22 April – Agriculture and Land Use
20 May – Waste
Date TBC – Energy Supply

The meeting concluded at 7.52 pm
Page 5



Climate Change Working Group (HPBC)
Wednesday, 24 March 2021

4

CHAIRMAN
FIELD_TITLE

Page 6



Liz Pasteur
Derby City & Derbyshire County Councils 

Reduce costs and cut carbonP
age 7



DE-Carbonise – three parts

Collaboration between Derby City and Derbyshire County Councils 
and the University of Derby

• Business audits and grant funding to support carbon reduction

• Technical support for product and process improvements

• Developing supply chain networks to drive carbon savings

ERDF part-funded.
Until October 2022.

P
age 8



Councils work with Derby and Derbyshire businesses.

• DE-Carbonise team member site visit to carry out audit (or 
virtual audit if site visit not possible)

• Provide carbon reduction report with recommendations

• Can provide additional consultancy

• Grants of between £1,000 and £20,000 (DERBY ONLY)

• Grant pays 40% of cost of works 

DE-Carbonise project - Councils

P
age 9



How can we help your business?

✓ Improved insulation, lighting, heating and controls

✓ More efficient motors, compressors, equipment

✓ Transport – electric vehicles, chargers

✓ Renewable energy

✓ Resource efficiency

✓ Waste reduction and recycling

P
age 10



Lighting and sensors

P
age 11



Lighting and sensors

Grant: £1,565 for LED lighting and sensors
Savings: £1,867 and 3.2 tonnes carbon per year

P
age 12



New boilers +
Zoned heating +
Controllers

P
age 13



Grant: £5,796 for heating and roller door
Savings: £682 and 4 tonnes carbon per year

Heating and insulation

P
age 14



Compressor Office area

Compressed air and heat recovery

Grant of £20,000 for compressor and heat recovery; 
Saving up to £43,000 and 112 tonnes carbon per year 

P
age 15



Windows  and insulation

Grant of £12,290 for double & secondary
glazing, LED lighting, insulation and heating.

Saving £2,700 and 6.7 tonnes carbon per year

Received a Brighter City of 
Derby restoration highly 
commended award 2020

“Thanks again for your 
help, we would have 
struggled to get to where 
we are without your 
support”

P
age 16



Resource efficiency  

Grant of £9,724 for LED lighting & controllers
Saving over £5,644 and 6 tonnes carbon/year 

Reduce material use, save money

P
age 17



Renewable energy

Grant of £15,000 for 41.25 kWp solar photovoltaic system
Saving up to £3,000 per year and 10 tonnes carbon.

P
age 18



Transport  

Grant of £3,859 to install 2 twin 22kW fast charge points
Savings of £1,000 and 5 tonnes carbon per year

P
age 19



Other grants and support

Derbyshire County Council Green Entrepreneur Fund

• Demonstrator grants up to £100,000

• Small grants of £10,000 to £20,000

• Scholarship fund – funding for individuals to retrain

https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/business/green-entrepreneurs-fund/green-entrepreneurs-fund.aspx

P
age 20

https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/business/green-entrepreneurs-fund/green-entrepreneurs-fund.aspx


Other grants and support

University of Nottingham Energy for Business grants

• Grants of up to £8,000 for energy saving for SMEs

• Projects should be innovative

• Paid retrospectively, 3 quotes required; 40% intervention

https://www.nottingham.ac.uk/research/research-areas/energy-technologies/business-support/grant-
scheme/index.aspx

P
age 21

https://www.nottingham.ac.uk/research/research-areas/energy-technologies/business-support/grant-scheme/index.aspx


Questions?

www.derby.gov.uk/decarbonise

(see short video about the project)

Twitter @DE-Carbonise

Liz Pasteur
Derby City & Derbyshire County Councils

Liz.pasteur@derby.gov.uk

P
age 22

http://www.derby.gov.uk/decarbonise


Your

Chamber

The go to place for 

answers in business

Grow Connect Skills Influence International Join

Campaign: Sustainable East Midlands 

P
age 23

http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/
http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/grow
http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/connect
http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/skills
http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/influence
http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/international
http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/join


The go to place for answers in business
Your

Chamber
The go to place for answers in business

The campaign aims to increase awareness and engagement among businesses 
with the sustainability agenda, while pushing the region to the forefront of the 

UK's 'Build Back Greener' vision for the post-Covid economy

https://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/helping-you-influence/sustainable-east-midlands/

Objective:

P
age 24

http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/
https://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/helping-you-influence/sustainable-east-midlands/


The go to place for answers in business
Your

Chamber
The go to place for answers in business

• To support members to transition to the low-carbon economy, while ensuring they remain economically viable

• To support members to understand and take advantage of the ever-increasing demands pushed down through 
supply chains

• To help members appraise their business models to understand the potential disruptive nature of low carbon  
markets

• To understand the growth potential and opportunities of operating in the low carbon goods and environmental 
services sector

• To provide and facilitate opportunities to disseminate information and support, to enable members to engage in 
the pro-environmental agenda

• To ensure that members can access support to develop and innovate in the creation and development of pro-
environment products and services

• To identify and work with stakeholders to drive forward policies and activity to support impactful delivery

• To provide insight and data to make informed choices to drive forward policy and activity

Goals

P
age 25

http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/


The go to place for answers in business
Your

Chamber
The go to place for answers in business

Delivery of a suite of Forums/Conferences/Summits

HOW:

P
age 26

http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/


The go to place for answers in business
Your

Chamber
The go to place for answers in business

Business Network Magazine: 

P
age 27

http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/


The go to place for answers in business
Your

Chamber
The go to place for answers in business

Online:

P
age 28

http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/


The go to place for answers in business
Your

Chamber
The go to place for answers in business

Signposting to Funded Support

P
age 29

http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/


The go to place for answers in business
Your

Chamber
The go to place for answers in business

Environmental Impact Business Award: 

The Environmental Impact Award will be awarded to an organisation

which has put environmental sustainability at the core of its business.

The winning business will demonstrate a measurable commitment to 

making a positive impact on the environment.

P
age 30

http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/


The go to place for answers in business
Your

Chamber
The go to place for answers in business

Research, Policy and Representation: 

P
age 31

http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/


The go to place for answers in business
Your

Chamber
The go to place for answers in business

P
age 32

http://www.emc-dnl.co.uk/


HPBC CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP

24TH MARCH 2021

P
age 33



BREEDON GROUP 2

CONTENTS

• Breedon

• Hope Cement

• MPA Beyond Net Zero 2050 roadmap

• CCUS

• Resource Efficiency

• Other benefits

• Policy

• Appendices

P
age 34



BREEDON GROUP 3

BREEDON GROUP

P
age 35



BREEDON GROUP 4

HOPE HISTORY

P
age 36



BREEDON GROUP 5

1.5 Mt/a capacity 

plant

Good rail network, 

>1 Mt/a by rail

Good relations 

with local 

stakeholders

200 employees

50% of employees 

living in the Peak 

park

~£60M GVA

HOPE TODAY

P
age 37



BREEDON GROUP 6

Raw mix attributes071113_HM_Raw mix attributes.ppt

MPA “BEYOND NET ZERO” 2050 ROADMAP

P
age 38



BREEDON GROUP 7

Raw mix attributes071113_HM_Raw mix attributes.ppt

UK CLUSTERS

UK cement – 10 sites

2 in High Peak

UK lime – 6 sites

3 in High Peak

P
age 39



BREEDON GROUP 8

HOPE

WHY ARE WE HERE?

- Cement

- Lime

- Aggregates

Site 2019 emissions (kt CO2)

Hope Cement 1084

Tunstead Cement 641

Tunstead Lime 259

Hindlow Lime (T) 172

Hindlow Lime (L) 149P
age 40



BREEDON GROUP 9

Raw mix attributes071113_HM_Raw mix attributes.ppt

MPA “BEYOND NET ZERO” 2050 ROADMAP

P
age 41



BREEDON GROUP 10

Raw mix attributes071113_HM_Raw mix attributes.ppt

RESOURCE EFFICIENCY

P
age 42



BREEDON GROUP 11

Raw mix attributes071113_HM_Raw mix attributes.ppt

MPA “BEYOND NET ZERO” 2050 ROADMAP

P
age 43



BREEDON GROUP 12

Raw mix attributes071113_HM_Raw mix attributes.ppt

POLICY

GOAL

Public buildings: Government is aiming to reduce public sector emissions by 

50% by 2032 against 2017 levels. 

ADVICE

In the CCC’s Sixth Carbon Budget “The path to Net Zero” it is recommended that 

the public sector should:

• Work with industry to agree a standard for the ‘whole-life’ carbon footprint of 

buildings and infrastructure.

• Introduce mandatory disclosure of whole-life carbon in buildings and 

infrastructure to facilitate benchmarking as soon as possible.

• Introduce a mandatory minimum whole-life carbon standard for both buildings 

and infrastructure which strengthens over time, with differentiated targets by 

function and usage.

HOW

• Request low-carbon solutions whilst tendering in both materials and design

• Think “whole-life” and long-term efficiency

• Consider the re-use and re-purposing of buildings

• Optimise recycling of materials

P
age 44



BREEDON GROUP 13

Raw mix attributes071113_HM_Raw mix attributes.ppt

POLICY

Quote from Industrial Decarbonisation Strategy p.43:

“Green Paper on procurement reform

The end of the transition period provides a golden opportunity to reform the UK’s 

public procurement regulations, to make public procurement simpler and 

better able to meet the needs of this country, while still complying with our 

international obligations. Our aim is for bold reforms that improve commercial 

outcomes, deliver simplification and flexibility, reduce administrative burdens, 

drive innovation, get small and medium enterprises winning public sector 

business and provide more transparency. On 15 December 2020, Cabinet Office 

published a Green Paper consultation on Transforming Public Procurement 

ahead of bringing forward primary legislation in the summer. The Green Paper 

includes a number of proposals to enable procurement to better deliver 

government policy and maximise societal benefits, such as amending the basis 

on which contracts are awarded from most economically advantageous 

tender (MEAT) to most advantageous tender (MAT) and retaining the 

requirement for criteria to be linked to the “subject matter of the contract” but 

allowing specific exceptions set by government.”

P
age 45



APPENDICES

P
age 46



BREEDON GROUP 15

LINKS

Mineral Products Association (MPA) Cement 

- representing the UK cement industry

Homepage (thisisukconcrete.co.uk)

Home : GCCA (gccassociation.org)

Breedon Group | Largest Independent 

Construction Materials Group

Sixth Carbon Budget - Climate Change 

Committee (theccc.org.uk)

P
age 47



BREEDON GROUP 16

THE CEMENT PROCESS

P
age 48



BREEDON GROUP 17

Raw mix attributes071113_HM_Raw mix attributes.ppt

CEMENT & LIME EMISSIONS

P
age 49



BREEDON GROUP 18

Raw mix attributes071113_HM_Raw mix attributes.ppt

INDUSTRIAL FUEL SWITCHING COMPETITION 

PROJECTS

• State-of-the-art fuel mix for UK cement production to test the path 

for net zero (led by MPA):

• This project will investigate the potential for zero-carbon fuel sources such as biomass, 

hydrogen and electricity in cement production. Physical trials will be run to switch energy 

input from fossil fuels to cleaner fuels at two cement manufacturing sites. This could 

yield emissions savings up to 2 million tonnes of CO
2

per year if implemented across the 

UK cement industry. Contract value: £3.2 million.

• Hydrogen alternatives to natural gas for calcium lime manufacturing 

(led by BLA):

• This project aims to use hydrogen as an alternative to natural gas for high calcium lime 

manufacturing, servicing diverse markets including iron and steel manufacturing. 

Hydrogen has not been used to manufacture high calcium lime anywhere in the world –

the project will examine and demonstrate the suitability by reviewing the process design, 

safety, operational and environmental management and product quality. Contract value: 

£2.82 million.

P
age 50



Achieving
NET ZERO
Farming’s 2040 goalFarming’s 2040 goalFarming’s 2040 goal

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 4



Introduction
The NFU has set the ambitious goal of reaching net zero 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions across the whole of agriculture 
in England and Wales by 2040. This is our contribution to the 
UK’s ambition of net zero by 2050.
 
Agriculture is uniquely placed to be part of the solution, as both 
an emissions source and a sink. As farmers we have a special 
responsibility to protect carbon reserves already in our soils 
and vegetation. But we must and we can do more. We know 
emissions from UK farms presently amount to 45.6 million 
tonnes of carbon dioxide (CO2) equivalent a year – about one-
tenth of UK GHG emissions. But in stark contrast to the rest 
of the economy only 10 per cent of this is CO2. Around 40% is 
nitrous dioxide (N2O) and 50% is methane (CH4).
 
The NFU’s assessment is that we can only deliver net zero if we 
act across a range of internationally recognised inventories. 
Based upon the latest scienti�c evidence, our approach has been 
discussed with the Committee on Climate Change, so we believe 
our aim is challenging, but attainable, given the right incentives.
 
There is no single answer to this problem. To achieve our aim 
we will need a range of measures that fall under three broad 
headings:
• Improving farming’s productive ef�ciency;
•  Improving land management and changing land use to 

capture more carbon;
• Boosting renewable energy and the wider bioeconomy.
 
At the same time as reducing our impact on the climate, we 
should not reduce our capacity to feed UK consumers with 

high quality, affordable British food. The UK must not achieve 
its climate change ambitions by exporting UK production, or our 
greenhouse gas emissions, to other countries. 
 
Our ambition for a net zero contribution to climate change 
across the whole of agricultural production by 2040 is a national 
aspiration, not an expectation that every farm can reach net zero. 
Every farm will start the journey to net zero from a different place 
and will need a unique action plan.
 
It is important to start that journey by assessing the likely emissions 
sources on farm. I know the future on my farm has to be about 
holistic farm management - not organic versus conventional, but 
sustainable farming practice that focuses on building soil health. 
Our mixed rotation is focused on continually striving to improve 
grazing pasture, introduce more clover and herbal leys which 
help to �x nitrogen so we use less fertiliser, and GPS technology 
is supporting our ability to precision farm. I’m con�dent that new 
feed additives and minerals will also help further reduce methane 
and regular benchmarking ensures I’m getting the best performance 
and productivity out of my livestock. Focusing on health status and 
the right genetics are key to carbon neutral farming. 
 
The NFU believes that the agricultural sector is very much part 
of the solution to decarbonising the UK economy and achieving 
net zero and we are working on proposals for pilot schemes to 
introduce policy incentives to bring to life net zero for farmers 
and growers. But we will only be able to achieve our carbon 
neutral goal with concerted support from government, industry 
and other key groups to help deliver this challenging, but 
achievable, ambition.

Minette Batters
NFU President

2

P
age 52



The global challenge of 
tackling climate change
Climate change is arguably the greatest 
environmental challenge facing the 
world, with many countries now 
experiencing unprecedented and 
increasingly frequent extremes of 
weather. International action on this issue 
has been slow to take off, but progress 
is now being made in decarbonising the 
global economy as well as in adapting to 
a changing climate.

Britain’s Climate Change Act of 2008 
introduced the world’s �rst long-term 
national framework to tackle climate 
change, setting a legally binding target 
of an 80% reduction in GHG emissions 
by 2050, against a 1990 baseline. After 
a few false starts, the comprehensive 
international Paris Agreement on climate 
change was approved in 2015, aiming to 
limit GHG emissions “as soon as possible” 
and keeping global temperature increase 
“well below” 2C. The Paris Agreement 
also recognised the importance of 
“safeguarding food security and ending 
hunger, and the particular vulnerabilities 
of food production systems to the adverse 
impacts of climate change”.

Three years later, the Intergovernmental 
Panel on Climate Change issued a 
scienti�c report on the potential impacts 
of global warming and how the rise in 
global temperature should be limited 
to 1.5C. It concluded that the risks and 
impacts of 2C average warming compared 
with 1.5C justify a much deeper and 
faster policy response, in terms of 
technological changes to energy and 
food production as well as human 
lifestyle.

In 2019, Britain became the �rst 
major world economy to legislate 
for net zero emissions, aiming 
to end the contribution of UK 
economic production activities to 
climate change over the next 30 
years. Many other countries and 
trading blocs are expected to follow 
suit, raising hopes that the worst 
effects of climate change can be 
avoided in the near future.

3

P
age 53



Agricultural GHG emissions are very 
different from other sectors of the 
economy, such as electricity generation, 
transport and manufacturing. The 
principal GHG emitted by most industries 
is carbon dioxide (CO2) from fossil fuel 
combustion, while for agricultural systems 
methane (CH4) and nitrous oxide (N2O) are 
the main GHGs. Reducing these emissions 
is more dif� cult than cutting CO2, because 
they result from complex and imperfectly 
understood natural soil and animal 
microbial processes, a changing climate 
and the limitations of measurement.

A supply of nitrogen from organic 
or inorganic sources is necessary for 
the growth of crops and pasture, and 
it is an unavoidable consequence of 
soil processes that a small amount of 
nitrogen in an agricultural system will 
be emitted as nitrous oxide. Likewise, 
methane is produced by bacteria as cattle 
and sheep break down the cellulose in 
their diet, producing milk and meat for 
human consumption from large areas of 
grassland that would be unsuitable for 
arable farming.

The current UK agricultural 
GHG inventory

British agricultural GHG emissions in 
2017 were 45.6 million tonnes of CO2

equivalent (10% of UK total GHG 
emissions), comprising methane (5.6% 
of UK total), nitrous oxide (3.1%) and 
CO2 (1.2%). Agricultural emissions have 
decreased by 16% overall since 1990, 
but there has been only modest progress 
since 2011, when the industry’s GHG 
Action Plan was agreed.

emissions in the UK
GreenHouse gas

business

agriculture

15%

17%

24%

27%

10%
residential

energy supply

Transport

4

P
age 54



Why agriculture is part of the solution 
to climate change

SOLAR &
WIND POWER
(VERY LOW EMISSIONS)

AGRICULTURE
circular, balanced �ows of greenhouse gases

CH4

RUMINANT LIVESTOCK

ENERGY
PRODUCTS

E.G. BIOGAS, FUELS
BIOENERGY CROPS

CO2CO2

BIOECONOMY

BIOENERGY WITH
CARBON CAPTURE

AND STORAGE
(BECCS)

LONG-LIVED
PRODUCTS

STORE CARBON

FOOD CROPS FOOD

CO2CO2

10% of UK GHG emissions

SOIL CARBON STORAGE

CO2

N2O

PLUS INCREASED FARMLAND
WOODLAND AND ENHANCED

HEDGEROWS

SMART FARMING
WILL REDUCE ALL
GHG EMISSIONS

CO2

5

80% of UK GHG emission
FOSSIL FUELS

one-way �ow of greenhouse gases

CO2CO2

TRANSPORT & DISTRIBUTION

CO2

COAL
OIL

SHALE GAS

CO2

Agriculture, and the land-based economy, can play a key role in tackling climate change. It is uniquely placed to capture 
the major greenhouse gas – carbon dioxide (CO2) – from the air and turn it, with the help of farmers, into a wide range 
of foods, � bres and fuels. By enhancing this ability to capture carbon we can use it to generate “negative emissions” – 
actively removing CO2 from the atmosphere and balancing agriculture’s emissions of methane (CH4) and nitrous oxide 
(N2O) from food production.

CO2   Carbon Dioxide
CH4   Methane
N2O  Nitrous Oxide

P
age 55



Now is the right time to set ourselves 
challenging goals, consistent with our 
high standards of production, welfare 
and environmental stewardship, as 
farmers and growers adjust to a new 
domestic agricultural policy. There are 
clear environmental and economic 
imperatives for action. As an industry 
we must respond to growing scienti�c 
evidence of the impacts of climate 
change, and the experience of our 
farmers and growers weathering 
extremes of cold, drought and �ood in 
recent years.

Farm businesses can make an important 
contribution to building a zero-carbon 
economy for Britain and the NFU 
recognises that we must set out how this 
can be best achieved alongside the many 
other expectations on farmers 
and growers.

There are no ‘silver bullet’ answers to 
tackling climate change and achieving 
net zero. We believe action to tackle 
climate change in UK agriculture requires 
a portfolio of different policies and 
practices focused on three key themes, 
or pillars:

The NFU’s vision: 
our approach

•  Improving farming’s productive 
ef�ciency to reduce our greenhouse 
gas emissions – enabling farming to 
produce the same quantity of food, or 
more, with less inputs in smarter ways;

•  Farmland carbon storage in soils 
and vegetation – improving land 
management and changing land use to 
capture more carbon, through bigger 
hedgerows, more woodland, and 
especially more carbon-rich soil;

•  Boosting renewable energy and the 
bioeconomy to displace greenhouse gas 
emissions from fossil fuels and to create 
GHG removal through photosynthesis 
and carbon capture.

Our evidence suggests that, over the next 
20 years, work under these three pillars 
could reduce, offset and counterbalance 
current agricultural emissions of 45.6 
MtCO2e/year.

Current (2017) agricultural emissions balanced against potential 
GHG reduction through productivity measures and GHG removals by 
various methods

Proposed GHG reduction/removal 
by 2040

GHG emissions
(2017)

M
t 

C
O

2e
 / 

ye
ar

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

BIOECONOMY
BASED

MEASURES
26 MtCO2e/year

FARMLAND
CARBON
STORAGE

9 MtCO2e/year

PRODUCTIVITY
IMPROVEMENTS
11.5 MtCO2e/year

METHANE
25.7 MtCO2e/year

NITROUS
OXIDE

14.3 MtCO2e/year

CARBON
DIOXIDE

5.6 MtCO2e/year

6

P
age 56



Improving farming’s productive ef�ciency 
will enable farmers to produce the same 
quantity of food, or more, with less 
inputs, in smarter ways. This, in turn, will 
enable the sector to reduce its greenhouse 
gas emissions.

A variety of measures to boost 
productivity and reduce emissions, as 
identi�ed by the Committee on Climate 
Change (CCC), plus others emerging from 
current NFU work on productivity will be 
required to achieve this. These measures 
include things like:
•  The use of controlled release fertilisers 

and inhibitors to increase ef�cient use 
of nitrogen and reduce emissions;

•  Feed additives to reduce methane 
emissions from ruminant livestock;

•  Improving health in cattle and sheep to 
reduce methane emissions and boost 
growth rates;

•  Precision farming for crops to deliver 
nutrients and crop protection more 
ef�ciently;

Pillar 1
Boosting productivity 
and reducing emissions
Estimated GHG savings: 11.5 MtCO2e/year

•  Loosening compacted soils and 
preventing soil compaction in cropland 
and pasture, reducing the need for 
cultivation and minimising N2O emissions;

•  Anaerobic digestion to convert animal 
manures, crops and crop by-products into 
renewable energy;

•  A wide range of energy ef�ciency 
measures to reduce usage of fuels 
and electricity;

•  Gene editing for disease resistance to 
improve health and productivity of crops 
and livestock and reduce emissions.

To enable us to achieve these improvements 
in farming’s productive ef�ciency, we need:
•  Defra to immediately introduce pilot 

productivity schemes alongside the 
Environmental Land Management 
Scheme (ELMS);

•  Shared Prosperity Fund support for rural 
development;

•  Department for Business, Energy and 
Industrial Strategy (BEIS) support through 
the Industrial Strategy.

Productive e�ciency 
measures

could deliver estimated 
GHG savings of

11.5 MtCO2e/yearCO2N2O
CH4

7

P
age 57



Farming is already responsible for a 
critical carbon resource in soils, wooded 
landscape and semi-natural habitats. The 
achievement of net zero should actively 
incentivise the conservation of this carbon 
resource as well as its enhancement. 
This conservation and enhancement can 
be achieved through improving land 
management and changing land use to 
capture more carbon – by the provision of 
bigger hedgerows, more woodland and 
especially more carbon-rich soils.
•  Enhanced soil carbon storage could 

deliver GHG savings of 5 MtCO2e/year. 
This would require Defra support for a 
network of demonstration farms and 
the development of a mechanism for 
reward payments.

•  Enhancing and increasing hedgerows 
could deliver GHG savings of up to 0.5 
MtCO2e/year. This would require the 
inclusion of hedgerow management

Pillar 2
Farmland carbon storage
Estimated GHG savings: 9 MtCO2e/year

in the Environmental Land 
Management Scheme (ELMS); the 
promotion of hedgerow options in 
Championing the Farmed Environment 
(CFE); and support from Defra and 
Treasury for carbon pricing.

•  Increasing woodland planting on farms 
could deliver GHG savings of 0.7 MtCO2e/
year. Inclusion of woodland and shelter 
belt planting in ELMS; promotion of new 
planting in CFE; and support from Defra 
and the Treasury for carbon pricing will 
be needed to help achieve this.

•  Peatland and wetland restoration might 
deliver GHG savings of up to 3 MtCO2e/
year. Support for this work in ELMS will 
be needed to help achieve this.

Enhancing and increasing hedgerows
could deliver GHG savings of up to

0.5 MtCO2e/year

Enhanced soil carbon storage
could deliver GHG savings of

5 MtCO2e/year

CO2

SOIL CARBON
STORAGE

Increasing farmland 
woodland

could deliver GHG savings of 
0.7 MtCO2e/year

8

P
age 58



Pillar 3
Coupling bioenergy 
to carbon capture, 
utilisation and storage
Estimated GHG savings: Up to 26 MtCO2e/year

Boosting renewable energy and the 
bioeconomy to displace greenhouse gas 
emissions from fossil fuels and to create 
GHG removal through photosynthesis 
and carbon capture is a key part of the 
NFU ambition for achieving net zero.
•  Bioenergy with carbon capture 

and storage (BECCS) – the process 
of producing energy from organic 
matter and capturing and storing 
the carbon produced – could deliver 
GHG savings of up to 22 MtCO2e/year. 
Implementation of the industry-led 
Bioenergy Strategy by BEIS, a clear 
carbon price trajectory and multiple 
demonstration projects at different 
scales will be needed to achieve this.

•  Bio-based materials in construction 
and industry could deliver GHG 
savings of 0.5 MtCO2e/year. This will 
also require the implementation 
of the Government’s Bioeconomy 
Strategy, as well as support from the 
Home Of�ce and Ministry of Housing, 

Communities and Local Government 
for novel building and insulation 
materials like hemp �bre and sheep’s 
wool.

•  Displacement of fossil fuel use by 
land-based renewables could deliver 
GHG savings of up to 3 MtCO2e/year. 
This will need the government to 
enable further growth in land-based 
renewables and BEIS and 
Defra to allow credit for avoided 
GHG emissions.

In the longer term, it is possible that 
the application of biochar – powdered 
charcoal – to soil and accelerated 
mineral weathering could deliver GHG 
savings of up to 2.5 MtCO2e/year and 
up to 1 MtCO2e/year, respectively. These 
processes will require further evaluation 
and approval before use.

Boosting renewable energy 
and the bioeconomy
could deliver estimated 
GHG savings of up to
26 MtCO2e/year

Photo courtesy of FUTURE BIOGASS LIMITED

9

P
age 59



Partnership working – with 
government, with industry, 
with academics
The policy measures needed to enable UK 
farming to meet our net zero aspiration 
will require a partnership approach. 
Uptake by farm businesses will need to 
be accompanied by concerted support 
across government departments, agencies 
and other stakeholders to act with us and 
help us deliver on this ambition.

For example, boosting productivity across 
all farm sectors needs a range of policy 
measures not just from Defra but also 
BEIS, the Treasury and other government 
departments to enable investment in new 
technology and refurbishment of existing 
capital, consistent with the Industrial 
Strategy and Clean Growth Strategy.

Enhancing carbon storage in soils and 
vegetation will require collaborative 
working with environmental NGOs. 
There also needs to be recognition by 
both these NGOs and government of the 
multiple environmental bene�ts that 
could be layered together with carbon 
storage in response to a realistic carbon 
reward price.

The UK also needs to develop a strong 
domestic bioenergy base in the short 
term, alongside other land-based 
renewables, in order to build up its 
longer-term potential for greenhouse gas 
removal in the future, through a variety 
of bioenergy pathways as well as the 
wider bioeconomy.

By working together as an industry, across 
all farming sectors, choosing from a broad 
range of policy measures will enable 
individual farm businesses to take action 
on net zero.

10

P
age 60



Systems for farmers and growers to track 
and be rewarded for the public good of 
reducing or offsetting GHG emissions 
have yet to be developed. These may 
need to be based upon both physical 
audits (actually measuring and recording 
changes in farm practice) as well as 
expected results predicted by modelling. 
It is quite likely that monitoring and 
veri�cation of certain measures, such as 
enlarged or extended hedgerows, will be 
easier than others, such as soil carbon.

However, “proxy indicators” of changed 
management practice which are likely 
to increase carbon storage could be 
coupled to models that are supported 
by actual �eld testing, carried out 
on a network of ‘climate-friendly’ 
demonstration farms, which would 
represent different farming systems 
across a range of soils and natural 
environments. Ideally a single integrated 
measure such as the Sustainability Metric 
that the Sustainable Farming Trust 
proposes, would capture a range of 
agronomic and environmental 
factors. 

Measurement, reporting 
and next steps

There is an urgent need now to pilot our 
ambitions with support from government 
and other stakeholders, bringing net 
zero to life for the farmers and growers 
who are critical to its success. Our 
initial pilot proposals aim to develop 
a farmer-friendly framework for 
monitoring and reporting tools, to 
boost con�dence that changes in 
on-farm practice are being captured. 
Such a framework might be validated 
and con�rmed with reference 
to a �eld testing farm network, 
and backed up by actual physical 
measurement across a small sample 
of the total.

11

P
age 61



Report produced by:

NFU, AGRICULTURE HOUSE
STONELEIGH PARK, STONELEIGH, WARWICKSHIRE CV8 2TZ
September 2019

P
age 62



A guide for local authorities

& agriculture

P
age 63



NET ZERO & AGRICULTURE - A guide for local authorities

Farmers and growers are central to a zero carbon economy.

We ask that local authorities work with farmers and growers, to include the measures 
outlined here in their Climate Change Emergency plans, local plans, economic 
development strategies, own procurement strategies and how they develop funding 
bids with LEPs.

National predictions are for the low carbon economy to grow four times faster than 
the rest of the economy. Farmers and the land they manage can play a part in this 
clean growth through decarbonising agricultural production, as well as delivering 
products and services which replace fossil fuels and remove or store carbon.

The NFU is committed to achieving net zero agriculture by 2040. The UK can 
enhance its status as a world leader in climate-friendly food production, ensuring 
a sustainable food supply within the UK, and at the same time strengthening the 
economy. To do this agriculture needs the support of all policymakers to provide an 
enabling environment in which farms can provide GHG mitigation and other services.

Our aim is for a productive, profitable and sustainable agriculture sector, with skilled, 
capable and innovative farmers accelerating our national transition to a  
net zero economy.

Working together 
to achieve Net Zero

Stuart Roberts,
Deputy President NFU

Stuart

P
age 64



SOLAR &
WIND POWER
(VERY LOW EMISSIONS)

CH4

RUMINANT LIVESTOCK

ENERGY
PRODUCTS

E.G. BIOGAS, FUELS
BIOENERGY CROPS

CO2CO2

BIOECONOMY

BIOENERGY WITH
CARBON CAPTURE

AND STORAGE
(BECCS)

LONG-LIVED
PRODUCTS

STORE CARBON

FOOD CROPS FOOD

CO2CO2

SOIL CARBON STORAGE

CO2

N2O

PLUS INCREASED FARMLAND
WOODLAND AND ENHANCED

HEDGEROWS

SMART FARMING
WILL REDUCE ALL
GHG EMISSIONS

CO2

Local authorities
Local authorities have an essential role in supporting agriculture with strategic policies for clean growth 
in the rural economy. An agile planning approach linked to funding opportunities will help farmers and 
growers plan, innovate and deliver a net zero future.

Part of the solution
Agriculture is uniquely placed as both the source of 10% of UK emissions as well as a sink.  
Farming captures carbon dioxide (CO2) from the air and turns it into a wide range of foods, fibres, 
and fuels. By capturing and storing carbon, we can generate negative emissions – actively removing 
CO2 from the atmosphere to balance the CH4 and N2O emissions from food production. Farmers also 
manage substantial carbon reserves already present in soils and vegetation.

NET ZERO & AGRICULTURE - A guide for local authorities

P
age 65

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/structure-of-the-agricultural-industry-in-england-and-the-uk-at-june
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/866807/regionalstatistics_overview_20feb20.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/search?q=region%20gdp
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity


Storing of carbon  
on farmland:

By conserving what’s 
already there and changing 
land management and use 
we can capture more carbon 
– in soils, bigger hedgerows 
and trees.

Boosting productivity  
to reduce emissions:

Improving farming’s 
productive efficiency will 
enable farmers to produce 
the same quantity of food, 
or more, with less inputs, in 
smarter ways. This, in turn, 
will reduce greenhouse  
gas emissions.

Renewables and  
the bioeconomy:

To displace greenhouse gas 
emissions from fossil fuels
and to create GHG removal 
through photosynthesis and 
carbon capture.

NET ZERO & AGRICULTURE - A guide for local authorities

The NFU’s net zero aspiration 
in three pillars:

Pillar 1 Pillar 2 Pillar 3

P
age 66



NET ZERO & AGRICULTURE - A guide for local authorities

Reducing emissions through productivityPILLAR 1

Actions for net zero 
and where the Local Authority can help

Click the links
to find out more...

Agriculture

£10.4bn
bedrock of food 
and drink sector 

£121bn to UK economy

£261bn
 rural economy

3.6m employees, 550,000 
registered rural businesses 

(549,000 are SMEs)

P
age 67

https://www.cpre.org.uk/resources/transport-deserts-report/  


NET ZERO & AGRICULTURE - A guide for local authorities

Carbon storagePILLAR 2

Actions for net zero 
and where the Local Authority can help

Click the links
to find out more...

71%
of the UK  

land area is 
managed by the

agricultural sector

65%
of UK farmland is best 

suited for growing grass 
for animals to eat

P
age 68



NET ZERO & AGRICULTURE - A guide for local authorities

Renewables and the bioeconomyPILLAR 3

Actions for net zero 
and where the Local Authority can help

Click the links
to find out more...

Around

1/3 
of farms

have solar energy
(rooftop or ground-mounted)

65%
of farm businesses 

have diversified

P
age 69



Local solutions for a 
green recovery
The agricultural sector is facing change from 
every side driven by forthcoming changes 
in the post-Brexit policy and support 
environment for the industry, disruption in the 
food and drink marketplace, the accelerating 
pace of technology development, the fallout 
of COVID-19 and climate change.

A green recovery should be through place-
based actions, addressing climate change 
at the same time as levelling-up inequalities 
across regions with innovative thinking to scale 
solutions. Food production is essential to the 
local and national economy and must be the 
focus of supportive policies.

A new funding 
environment
The phase out of the European Common 
Agricultural Policy (CAP) from this year, 
including the direct payment to farmers will 
mean on average, approximately 60% of 
the total farm business income will be lost 
by the end of the agricultural transition. This 
will restrict cash flow as well as opportunities 
for investment in net zero measures. Previous 
forms of rural development funding such as 
LEADER and EFRD have been phased out, and 
new forms of rural development funding are 
uncertain but likely to be linked to the Local 
Industrial Strategies administered through 

LEPs. To address this, funding for agricultural 
and rural projects needs to be ring-fenced 
and maintained at least at existing levels, 
or we need proportionate funding to be 
made available to rural areas. There needs 
to be a legally binding guarantee that rural 
communities and farms will get their fair  share 
of funding. LEPs have an obligation to deliver 
the UK Industrial Strategy which is about 
maximising UK productivity in cities, towns, and 
rural areas through the distinctive strengths of 
each area. To achieve this, funding must reach 
rural areas. The rural economy is rich and 
diverse but cannot flourish without sufficient 
resource investment.

Farmers and land managers will continue to 
need access to capital funding and grant 
aid to secure business change. In the longer 
term, private capital investment may become 
available for carbon credits and offsetting. 
Existing forms of economic activity within 
each local authority area will need to find 
mechanisms to offset and reduce carbon.

The main replacement scheme, Environmental 
Land Management Scheme (E.L.M.s), from 
2024, will provide public money for public 
goods. E.L.M.s is still in development. Until the 
scheme detail is available it remains unclear 
whether E.L.M.s will be accessible to farmers to 
support a reduction in their GHG footprint.

NET ZERO & AGRICULTURE - A guide for local authorities

P
age 70



Skills and training
We estimate that agricultural emissions can 
be reduced by approximately 25% through 
introducing better agronomic practices. To 
do this, new technology and new skills are 
needed in the rural economy.

But farmers are busy people and may find 
it difficult to access training and business 
change advice. Where some colleges provide 
relevant training, this can be expensive and 
hard to reach from remote rural locations. Most 
farmers tend to develop an understanding 
about new ideas from their friends, family, 
peers, trusted advisers and any clusters or 
groups that they are involved with. They also 
attend agricultural events to learn about new 
technology and new opportunities.

There are many ways local authorities can 
support farmers and growers:
•  Support net zero champions in your local 

authority area – farmers and advisers – who 
can build consensus around low carbon and 

NET ZERO & AGRICULTURE - A guide for local authorities

net zero approaches.
•  Work in partnership with existing training 

providers to create training and educational 
opportunities for existing rural businesses.

•  Hold and support farmer focused events to 
share knowledge, understanding and local 
buy-in for new technologies and new ways 
of working.

•  Fund and promote demonstration sites 
and initiatives throughout your local 
authority area.

Tourism
Domestic tourism has the potential to increase 
as people take fewer international flights and 
focus on domestic holidays. In 2017, the UK 
received 31 million visits from international 
visitors, while almost 47 million British citizens 

went abroad for their holiday. If more people 
remain in the UK for holidays, the benefit 
to rural areas would be greatly felt through 
tourism and increased purchasing of local 
goods and foods, and reduction in GHG 
contributions from planes. In 2017, there were 
433m day trips to the British countryside, 
worth £11.7bn to the rural economy. Farming 
and land management provide the iconic 
British countryside which tourists enjoy.

Progress together
We have an unprecedented chance to 
embrace a green recovery to ensure the 
best transition to a net zero economy. There 
are ample localised opportunities for rural 
communities and farmers which will need 
mechanisms in place to level up.

P
age 71

https://www.independent.co.uk/travel/news-and-advice/uk-international-tourists-record-number-visitors-2017-london-england-brexit-a8166161.html#:~:text=A%20record%20number%20of%20international%20tourists%20visited%20the,There%20were%2030.1%20million%20inbound%20visits%20from%20
https://www.visitbritain.org/sites/default/files/vb-corporate/Documents-Library/documents/England-documents/40413193-260c_gb_tourist_2017_annual_report_v18.pdf
https://www.visitbritain.org/sites/default/files/vb-corporate/260139488_-_kantar_tns_-_gbdvs_2017_annual_report_v8.pdf


National Farmers Union
NFU HQ, Agriculture House,
Stoneleigh Park, Stoneleigh, 
Warwickshire, CV8 2TZ.

www.nfuonline.com

NET
ZERO
& agriculture
A guide for local authorities

For further enquiries: netzero@nfu.org.uk

P
age 72

mailto:netzero%40nfu.org.uk?subject=

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	DE-Carbonise presentation Liz Pasteur HPBC
	HPBC Sutainable East Midlands March 2021
	20210324 HPBC CCWG Breedon

	4 Theme - Agriculture and Land Use
	Net Zero and agriculture -  A guide for local authorities email V


	Helpful 1: 
	Helpful 2: 
	Hype1: 
	Hype 2: 
	Hype 3: 
	Hype 4: 
	Close: 
	p1-t4: 
	p1-t5: 
	p1-t6: 
	p1-t1: 
	p1-t2: 
	p1-t3: 
	p1-p6: 
	p1-p5: 
	p1-p4: 
	p1-p3: 
	p1-p2: 
	p1-p1: 
	p1-close: 
	Tab1 - p2: 
	Tab2 - p2: 
	p2-t2: 
	p2-t1: 
	p2-close: 
	p3-t1: 
	p3-t2: 
	p3-t3: 
	p3-p3: 
	p3-p2: 
	p3-p1: 
	p3-close: 


